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TOWN OF APPLE VALLEY 
TOWN COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 

 

To:  Honorable Mayor and Town Council  Date: June 28, 2016 
 
From:  Town Attorney’s Office    Item No: 9 
 
Subject: CONSIDERATION OF AT-LARGE VERSUS BY-DISTRICT ELECTION 

SYSTEM 
 
T.M.  Approval:_____________________ Budgeted Item:  Yes   No  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Town Council: 
 
A. Direct staff to initiate a process to consider the pros and cons of changing the 

Town’s current at-large election system possibly to a by-district election system; 
 
B. Authorize the Town Manager to execute an agreement with National 

Demographics Corporation to provide demographic assistance to the Town 
Council in considering this matter; and 

 
C. Authorize the Town Manager to execute an agreement with Remcho, Johansen & 

Purcell, LLP, to provide legal advice regarding the Town’s legal alternatives. 
 
SUMMARY: 

In recent years, concerns have been expressed by some about the ability of at-large 
election systems to elect diverse and representative legislative bodies.  A number of cities 
and other special districts across California, including some in San Bernardino County, 
are transitioning from at-large to by-district election systems.  The California Legislature 
recognized this problem when it enacted the California Voting Rights Act (Elections Code 
§§ 14025, et seq.; hereinafter the “CVRA”).   
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Town Staff is recommending the Town Council initiate a process which will enable it to 
review all of the Town’s legal alternatives including the possibility of transitioning to a by-
district election system.  Under the CVRA, the Town has the authority to enact by-district 
elections following several public hearings and the adoption of an ordinance.   

It is expected that the Town will engage in substantial public consultation and will need to 
retain the services of a demographic expert, to assist with community engagement and 
the possible legal alternatives currently available to the Town.  Staff is also recommending 
that the Town retain a specialist legal adviser, to ensure the Town remains in compliance 
with the CVRA and the Federal Voting Rights Act. 

BACKGROUND: 

In recent years, a number of cities in California have been sued under the CVRA.  
Typically, plaintiffs allege that the defendant city’s at-large election system has resulted 
in “racially polarized” voting, which is defined in the CVRA as “voting in which there is a 
difference . . . in the choice of candidates of other electoral choices that are preferred by 
voters in a protected class, and in the choice of candidates and electoral choices that are 
preferred by voters in the rest of the electorate.”  (Elec. Code, § 14026 (e).)  The lawsuits 
usually request that the defendant city transition to a by-district system.  In a by-district 
election system, a council candidate must reside within an election district that is a 
divisible part of the jurisdiction and is elected only by voters residing within that election 
district.  

Since the CVRA was signed into law, many local government entities have converted (or 
are in the process of converting) to by-district elections.  This includes at least 32 school 
districts, 27 community college districts, 30 cities, 1 county, and 8 water or other special 
districts.  The move toward by-district election systems is not surprising in light of the cost 
of litigating under the CVRA.  For example, Palmdale settled a CVRA lawsuit in 2015 for 
$4.5 million, Modesto paid $3 million to settle a similar case in 2008, and Anaheim settled 
in 2014 for an amount reported to be possibly as high as $2 million.  These numbers do 
not include the cities’ costs in paying their own attorneys to defend the lawsuits.   

Although Town Staff is of the opinion that racially polarized voting has not occurred in the 
Town, it appears both advisable and proactive to consider alternatives to the current at-
large election system.  The Town has long been committed to building an inclusive 
community, including inclusive representatives.  The Town Council may wish to consider 
a transition to a by-district election system as a way to further serve those goals.  Town 
Staff believes it would be wise to review the pros and cons of by-district elections at this 
time. 

PROPOSED ACTION: 

Changing the Council Election Process from At-Large Elections to By-District Elections 

The members of the Town Council are currently elected through an at-large election 
system, which means that the electors from the entire Town vote for the council members.  
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Under Government Code Section 34886, the Town Council may adopt an ordinance that 
requires the Town Council to be elected by district.  If the Town were to select a by-district 
election system, that transition cannot result in reducing the term of any incumbent city 
council member.  (Gov. Code, § 34873.)  Therefore, the transition process will include not 
only the drawing and establishment of district boundaries, but also the sequencing of the 
elections so that an incumbent’s term is not adversely affected.   

Retention of Experts 

If the Town Council chooses to initiate the process of considering possible changes in the 
current at-large election system, Town Staff recommends the Town Council also 
authorize the Town Manager to execute agreements with National Demographics 
Corporation to assist with the process and Remcho, Johansen & Purcell, LLP to provide 
legal advice regarding the Town’s legal alternatives. 

Town Staff, in conjunction with these consultants, will work to ensure residents of the 
Town have meaningful opportunity to participate in the district mapping process.  

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The agreement for demographic assistance has a not-to-exceed amount of $18,000. The 
agreement for legal advice will be based on hourly rates. Therefore, the fiscal impact will 
depend upon the necessity of advice during the transition process. Funds for these 
expenditures are available within the Town Attorney’s budget.  

ATTACHMENTS: 

1.   Proposed Agreement with National Demographics Corporation 

2. Proposed Agreement with Remcho, Johansen & Purcell, LLP (Provided under  
     separate cover.) 
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